City of Guyton, Georgia
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
November 9, 2021 at 7:00 P.M.

Ny o” % Pl ™=
POR
%:GOR 473%6 -

=: SEAL :

C.D. Dean, Jr., Public Safety Complex
GUYTON GYMNASIUM
505 Magnolia Street
Guyton, GA 31312

AGENDA
Call to Order

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

Consideration to Approve the Agenda

Consideration to Approve Minutes of Meetings
October 12, 2021 City Council Meeting

Reports from Staff or Committees

Police Department James Breletic
Fire Department Clint Hodges
Public Works/Water/Sewer EOM
Planning and Zoning Lon Harden
Historical Commission Pearl Boynes

Open Public Comments (due to cancelled Nov. Workshop, all topics welcome)
New Business

a. Consideration to approve additional SPLOST funds for repairs at Wells 1 and 2
b. Consideration to approve purchase of American Flag Banners

General Government

a. Spray Field Update

b. Records Clean Up Update

c. Water Shut Off Valve Discussion

d. Event Calendar 2022

11/9/21 City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 1 of 2



10.

12.

13.

14.

Dates to Remember
a. Thursday, November 11, 2021 — City Hall Closed for Veterans Day

b. Saturday, November 13, 2021 from 9:00am to 11:00pm — Rivers Alive Roadside
Cleanup, Guyton Rideshare Parking Lot, 91 Central Blvd., Guyton, GA 31312

c. Saturday, November 13,2021 from 5:00pm to 7:00pm — City of Guyton Business
Mixer, Guyton Gymnasium, 505 Magnolia Street, Guyton, GA 31312

d. Wednesday, November 17, 2021 at 11:00am, LMIG Bid Opening, Guyton City Hall,
310 Central Blvd., Guyton, GA 31312

e. Thursday and Friday, November 28 and 29 - City Hall closed for Thanksgiving

f.  Sunday, November 28, 2021 from 5:00pm to 6:00pm — Guyton Christmas Tree
Lighting, Guyton Caboose, 310 Central Blvd., Guyton, GA 31312

g. Saturday, December 4, 2021 from 8:00am to 2:00pm — Guyton Winter Sale on the
Trail and Christmas Parade (11am Start Time)

h. Tuesday, December 7, 2021 7:00pm, City Council Workshop, Guyton Gymnasium,
505 Magnolia Street, Guyton, GA 31312

Consideration to move from the Regular Meeting into an Executive Session
referencing Personnel

Consideration to take any action needed arising from Executive Session
Public Comments (will be limited to Agenda Items only)

Consideration to Adjourn this meeting

11/9/21 City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 2 of 2



City of Guyton, Georgia

City of Guyton
City Council Meeting
October 12,2021 7:00 p.m.

MINUTES OF MEETING

Call to Order — The City of Guyton Council held a Council Meeting on October 12, 2021 at the City of
Guyton Gymnasium, 505 Magnolia Street in Guyton. This meeting was called to order by Mayor Russ
Deen at approximately 7:00 p.m. Mayor Russ Deen, Mayor Pro Tem Michael Johnson, Sr., Council
Member Joseph Lee, and Council Member T. Marshall Reiser were present at this meeting. Other
Administrative Staff Present — Interim City Manager Mike Eskew, City Attorney Brian Griffin and Meketa
Brown, City Clerk were present. Guest Present - The guest sign-in sheets are filed in the office of the City
Clerk.

Invocation — Harden gave the invocation.

Pledge of Allegiance — The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Deen

Consideration to approve the agenda — _ Johnson made a motion to approve the agenda as
presented.
Reiser seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Consideration to approve Minutes of Meetings - Johnson made a motion to approve the minutes from
the September 14, 2021, Regular Council Meeting. Reiser seconded the motion. Motion passed’
unanimously.

Reports were given by the following Staff or Committees:

o Police Department James Breletic
e Fire Department Clint Hodges
o Public Works/Water/Sewer EOM

o Planning and Zoning Lon Harden

o Historical Commission Pearl Boynes

Public Comments (Limited to Agenda Items only) —

NEW BUSINESS

Consideration to approve addition of City Clerk Meketa Hendricks-Brown as a signer for City Bank
Accounts — Johnson made a motion for approval for Meketa Hendricks-Brown to be added to the City’s
Bank account. Lee seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Consideration to approve funding commitments for the State Fiscal Recovery Funds (SFRF)
Application Match Commitment Letter — Reiser made a motion to approve the match commitment letter.
Johnson seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Consideration to approve the use of SPLOST funds for the purpose of repaving the Guyton Walking
Trail Pelote made a motion to approve the use of SPLOST funds to repave the Guyton Walking Trail. Lee
seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Minutes of 10/12/2021 City of Guyton City Council Meeting - Page 1 of 2



Consideration to approve Resolution 2021-11 regarding the Charter — Johnson made a motion to

approve Resolution 2021-11 regarding the Charter. Lee seconded the motion. Motion passed
unanimously.

Consideration to approve Resolution 2021-12 regarding the wastewater agreement with the City of
Springfield - Johnson made a motion to approve Resolution 2021-12 regarding the wastewater agreement
with the City of Springfield. Pelote seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Consideration to approve Resolution 2021-13 regarding approval of the low bid of the 2021
TSPLOST Guyton Road Improvement Project. Reiser made a motion to approve the low bid for the
2021 TSPLOST Guyton Road Improvement Project. Pelote seconded the motion. Motion passed
unanimously.

General Government
a. Hiring a City Manager
b. Records Clean Up
c. LMIG Paving Project
Dates to Remember:

a. Saturday, October 16, 2021, from 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.- Guyton Sale on the Trail, Guyton Walking
Trail

b. Wednesday, October 27, 2021, from 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.- American Red Cross Blood Drive,
Guyton Gymnasium, 505 Magnolia Street, Guyton, GA 31312

c Saturday, October 30, 2021, from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.- Guyton Trick or Trail! Guyton Walking
Trail

d. Early voting will be held at the Effingham County Elections Office, 284 GA-119 S, Springfield,

GA 31329 from October 12 to October 29 from 9:00am to 5:00pm, Monday-Friday. Saturday early voting
will be October 16 and 23, 9:00am -5:00pm.

e. Tuesday, November 2, 2021 — Election Day- City of Guyton voters will vote at their regular County
polling location on Election Day, which will be either Pilgrim Baptist Association or Pineora Baptist

Church. If you are unsure of where to vote check www.mvp.sos.ga.gov or call the elections office, 912-
754-8030.

f. Tuesday, November 2, 2021, at 7:00pm — City Council Workshop,
Guyton Gymnasium, 505 Magnolia Street, Guyton, GA 31312

g Tuesday, November 9, 2021, at 7:00pm — City Council November Meeting,
Guyton Gymnasium, 505 Magnolia Street, Guyton, GA 31312

Public Comments (will be limited to Agenda Items only)
Consideration to Adjourn this meeting Reiser made a motion at approximately 7:35 p.m. to adjourn this
meeting. _Pelote seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously.

Meketa H. Brown, City Clerk

Russ Deen, Mayor

Minutes of 10/12/2021 City of Guyton City Council Meeting - Page 2 of 2



P.O. BOX 56

Tk
<
o
= [Iniversal

P.O. BOX 56 CUMMING, GA 30028
BILL TO
CITY OF GUYTON
310 CENTRAL BLVD.
GUYTON, GA 31312

21-15450 11/03/2021

$1,820.00
SHIP DATE SHIP VIA
10/14/2021 UPS
STIVITY
BANNERS

18" X 45" STOCK PATRIOTIC BANNERS, DIGITAL
ON VINYL, #uc10D970, RED, WHITE & BLUE AS
ILLUSTRATED

SHIPPING ON CHRISTMAS BANNER ORDER.

IF DELAYED PAYMENT IS NEEDED, JUST LET ME
KNOW.

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

www.christmasdecorandmore.com

FAX 770.844.9972

UNIVERSAL CONCEPTS

CUMMING, GA 30028 US

Invoice
CITY OF GUYTON
ATTN: RUSS DEAN
310 CENTRAL BLVD.
GUYTON, GA 31312
12/03/2021 Net 30
P.O. NUMBER SALES REP
PART OF ORDER LORI
A\TE AMOUNT
26 70.00 1,820.00
) i =
// —— \\I
BALANCE DUE /(
/ \ $1,820.00
\/
800.522.0718

sales@universalconceptsus.com



oy W\
GUYTON
Georgia

Working Together To Moke A Difference

EST. 1797

. mer !‘,"": | oy ‘
ot JMM&MM.JJ-AJ.“Lx N

COCTOSER
207

onthly Report

480 Edsel Drive, Ste 100
Richmond Hill, GA 31324
912.445.0050
WWW.€omworx.com




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Content Section

EXECULIVE SUMIMIAIY oo seseeessse e ssessssessesssssssssssssssssassssesanss 1.0
Wastewater TreatmMeNT ..t 243
CollectioNsS & DIStriULION .ot seascane e snsnas 3.0
PUBIIC WOTKS. .ottt st ssssans s sssesssnsnanins 4.0
A MINISTEATION oo s 5.0
APPENAIX oottt sttt 6.0

Guyton Monthly Report — October2021



SECTION1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

EOM is pleased to provide this revised monthly report to the City of Guyton
for review. Departmental reports and requested supplemental data can be
found enclosed.

MONTH HIGHLIGHT

Meter Change Outs - Performed 13 meter change outs and installed
7 new meters for the month of October.

e Linton Lane - Repaired the Linton Lane generator switchgear.

o Water Leak - Made arepair to the water leak in Mossy Hollow and
on Fifth Avenue.

e Watershed ProtectionPlan-
Completed the dry weather and wet
weather screening for the City's
Wastershed Protection Plan.

e Ditch Elevations- Continuing to
perform ditch elevations for extensive
drainage improvements.

e Lift Stations-All lift stationswere
cleaned with our VacTruck this month
as part of the preventative
maintenance program.

CAPITAL NEEDS & REPAIRS UPDATE

1. SCADA well upgrades at 3 wells —awaiting material arrival. Lead
times are taking longer than anticipated.

2. Roundabout Light Pole - We have ordered parts and material for
the light pole that was damaged following a car accident.

3. Well 1- Still in the process of being repaired. Additional issues
resulted in additional cost that needsto be evaluated and approved
by the city before work can resume. The building construction has
been set back aswell due to the injury of Lt. Allen who was
overseeing the job. It will resume ASAP.

4. Well 2- Modification will not begin until Well1is complete per state
mandate that at least 2 wells be in operation at all times. Well2is
serving as the back up to Well 3 during the ongoing SCADA
upgrade. If has been modified to pump locally without SCADA
controls.

5. Well 3- Undergoing SCADA install. Installation should be complete
Week of 11/08/21.

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021



COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

e Assisted with setting up the Blook Drive event.

e Thank you for asking EOM to participate in
Guyton's Trunk or Treat. Our team had fun
meeting residents and discussing stormwater
education.

e SAVE THE DATE! November 13* from 9:00-
11:00 AM, EOM will host a roadside litter pickup g
on Central Blvd in partnership with Rivers
Alive, the City of Guyton, and Effingham
County. Interested volunteers should sign up
with dcook@eomworx.com Official
advertisementincluded in Appendix.

Roadside Clean Up

HELP KEEP OUR COUNTY CLEAN.
VOLUNTEERS NEEDED!

Wiv_ers'
live

November 13th 9:00 am - 11:00 am
Roadside Clean Up

West Central Blvd, Guyton GA 31312

Rally point location: Guyton Ride Share Parking ¢
Lot (across from Parkers, 91 Central Avenue)
)

SIGN UP

dcook@eomworx.com
Coordinated by EOM Operations.
In partnership with Rivers Alive, the City of Guyton & Effingham County

WWIW.COmwors.com

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021



Section 2.0




SECTION 2.0

WASTEWATER TREATMENT

Table 1- WASTEWATER TREATED TREND REPORT

City of Guyton Wastewater Permit Capacity Comparison

2021 Monthly Average

w2020 Monthly Average

Permit MGD Limit- 0.

MGD
| e 3 Utilization of Permit Capacity {Current Year)

August September October November December

January  February  March April May Jure July

Note: Due to this month’s short deadline for report submittal, the DMRs are not included in
this report. Our team is awaiting results from the lab to complete the DMRs. We will include

them in the next month’s report for records purposes. Flow data is known and reported
accordingly in Table 2.

Table 2 - COMPLETED MAINTENANCE WORK ORDERS

250 -

150

50

CORRECTIVE | =

m # of WOs

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021



O
M
-
0
)
0
0
n




SECTION 3.0

COLLECTIONS & DISTRIBUTION

Table 1-TREATED WATER TREND REPORT

City of Guyton Groundwater Permit Capacity Comparison

a6

m— 2021 Monthly Average
s 2020 Monthly Average
Permit MGD Limit- 0.715 MGD

e %4, Utilization of Parmit Capacity (Current Year)

January  February  March April May june suly August  September October November December

Table 2 - WATER AND SEWER WORK ORDER REPORT

a

140 -
127
120
100 -
g0 -
80
40 -
20 - -
s
ol NN @ L
Z < & & =
o = S S
(%) (=3 (=3
- w o
3 & = o
o OO: - =3
il S 5
~ =]
=
o

= # of WCs

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021



3

| 2 l

MEAT BB

yeaT] Jamas

nedoy 10101

auloday 1ol

6

Buipeay 1219 |

13

MON |lRISUl JBja |

7

o abueyd (eysulsele

13

Pauu0dsiq 191 W

21
l 5

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021

onsoubeiq 101 |

3

PaLLD JajR |y

1
F |

2IN8S0I 19JRAL MO

18713207

NE abueyD BIpo | JaGANIDS N

1
o Il

25
20
1

Table 3 - WATER AND SEWER WORK ORDER TYPES

= #ofWOs



Guyton - Monthly Work Order Request Report

WO No.

19233 GY-ST-0098

46399 GY-ST-0010

68915 GY-ST-0032

69935 GY-ST-0006

69938 GY-ST-0010

69940 GY-ST-0012

69942 GY-ST-0014

69943 GY-ST-0098

69947 GY-ST-0098

69948 GY-ST-0016

69964 GY-ST-1015

72034 GY-ST-0062
72903 GY-ST-0067

72905 GY-ST-0067

72906 GY-ST-0067
75047 GY-ST-0012
75048 GY-ST-0002
75049 GY-ST-0101
75783 GY-ST-0028
75785 GY-ST-0012
75832 GY-ST-1013
76299 GY-ST-0094
76324 GY-ST-0070
76329 GY-ST-0094

76350 GY-ST-0094

76534 GY-ST-0030
76761 GY-ST-0083

76930 GY-ST-0012
76931 GY-ST-0030

76941 GY-ST-0031

Page 1 of 3

Asset ID

Asset Description

Central Boulevard

Blackberry Circle

Fifth Avenue

Bells Xing

Blackberry Circle

Brogdon Road

Cedar Lane

Central Boulevard

Central Boulevard

Cherry Street

Springfield Avenue

S Camelia Court
Saint Charles Drive

Saint Charles Drive

Saint Charles Drive
Brogdon Road
Anderson Avenue
Flat Bush Drive
Dilmus Jackson St
Brogdon Road
Wrigley Field Drive
Braves Field Drive
W Central Boulevard
Braves Field Drive

Braves Field Drive

Farrington Circle

Lynn Bonds Avenue

Brogdon Road
Farrington Circle

Farrington Court

Brief Description

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_New

Water Leak

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_New
Meter Install_New

Meter Install_New

Meter Install_New
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Disconnect
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Connect

Meter Connect

Meter Reading

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Disconnect
Meter Disconnect

Meter Reconnect

Comments

New 1D-1569433384 New Read-2.56

Polly is under a pile of dirt and that
the contractor has to move. 10/13
Meter is installed

there is a wet spot in grass have
called in locates its beside a
telephone box no obvious signs of a
water line here but will dig and
investigate the puddle is only one
foot square and not flowing
10/25/21- Complete. 1 inch water
line had a pin-hole and was leaking.
Repaired with a wrap around. David
McVey backfilled hole.

New Meter ID: 1569978332 Read: 25

New Meter ID: 1569019184
Read:2.56

New Meter ID: 1569854640 Read:
2.52

New Meter ID: 1569897342
Read:2.52

New Meter ID: Read: Meter was not
attached to the body, repair has
been made and the meter works
properly now. All information is the
same for this address.

New Meter ID: 1568720238
Read:2.52

New Meter ID: 1569860004 Read: 2

New Meter ID: 1568706316
Read:2.52

Diagnostic complete.
Diagnostic complete.
Diagnostic complete.
Diagnostic complete.
Diagnostic complete.
Diagnostic complete.
Off.

Diagnostic complete.
On

On.

New Meter ID- 1568391024 Start
Reading- 0

Completed task
Completed task

Completed task

Problem Type

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

WO Type
CORRECTIVE

IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

CITIZEN
CONCERN

CORRECTIVE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

CITIZEN
CONCERN

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

Completed Date
10/10/2021

10/13/2021

10/27/2021

10/08/2021

10/01/2021

10/08/2021

10/11/2021

10/10/2021

10/10/2021

10/29/2021

10/11/2021

10/23/2021
10/06/2021
10/23/2021

10/23/2021
10/05/2021
10/05/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021
10/05/2021
10/04/2021
10/04/2021

10/05/2021
10/08/2021

10/07/2021
10/07/2021
10/07/2021

Printed on 11/03/21 12:44:15 PM



Guyton - Monthly Work Order Request Report

WO No.

Page 2 of 3

77114
77584
77764
77765
77766
77772
77785
77788
77969
77978

78189
78193
78203
78209
78211
78343
78346
78348
78352

78354

78358
78834

78861

79083

79084

79088
79111
79299
79399
79571
79715

80177

80178

80180
80183

80184

Asset ID
GY-ST-0094
GY-ST-0010
GY-ST-0083
GY-ST-1016
GY-ST-0010
GY-METER-00
GY-ST-0023
GY-ST-0094
GY-ST-0002

GY-ST-0010

GY-ST-0010
GY-ST-0062
GY-ST-0071
GY-ST-0063
GY-ST-0041
GY-ST-0070
GY-ST-0054
GY-ST-0054
GY-ST-0018

GY-ST-SB-0011

GY-ST-1016
GY-ST-0010

GY-ST-0010

GY-ST-0008

GY-ST-0078

GY-ST-0104
GY-ST-0054
GY-ST-0054
GY-ST-0029
GY-ST-0041
GY-ST-0053
GY-ST-0085

GY-ST-0023

GY-ST-0070
GY-ST-0047

GY-ST-0010

Asset Description
Braves Field Drive
Blackberry Circle
Lynn Bonds Avenue
Candleberry Way
Blackberry Circle
Citywide Meters
Dean Drive
Braves Field Drive
Anderson Avenue

Blackberry Circle

Blackberry Circle

S Camelia Court
Whistlestop Drive
Seventh Avenue
Hidden Creek Drive
W Central Boulevard
Maple Circle

Maple Circle

Church Street

Mossy Hollow

Candleberry Way
Blackberry Circle

Blackberry Circle

Biltmore Drive

GA Highway 119 S

Archer Road

Maple Circle
Maple Circle

Easy Street

Hidden Creek Drive
Magnolia Street

Oakmont Drive

Dean Drive

W Central Boulevard

Jasmine Drive

Blackberry Circle

Brief Description
Meter Reading
Meter Reading
Meter Disconnect
Meter Disconnect
Meter Reading
Lock List
Meter Install_New
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic

Low Water Pressure

Meter Reading
Meter Install_New
Meter Reconnect
Meter Reconnect
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Reconnect
Meter Reconnect
Meter Diagnostic

Water Leak

Meter Connect
Meter Reading

Meter Reading

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Diagnostic
Water Leak
Meter Reconnect
Meter Reading
Meter Reading
Meter Reading

Meter Reading

Meter Diagnostic

Meter Diagnostic

Meter Diagnostic

Meter Diagnostic

Comments

Off

Off

Disconnects completed

Completed task

Completed task

There is water at this address, talked
to homeowner everything seems to

be working properly.

On.
On.
Completed task
Completed task
On
On

Completed task

Leak has been repaired. They hit the
city€s water line right before meter.

On

Completed task

Reading was 32287.71- Completed

& Sheet Attached

New ID-1569899610 New Read-2

New ID-1565796742 New Read-0.15

Diagnostic complete
resident issue

On.

Meter was installed backwards and
used 35 gallons so | turned the
meter around and installed it
correctly then ran the water to get
the meter back to 0, the read is now

0.

There are no leaks or anything at
this address. Diagnostic unavailable
due to this meter being a 14 series

Neptune.

Diagnostic complete.

No signs of leaks, diagnostic
unavailable due to this meter being

a 14 series Neptune.

Diagnostic complete.

Problem Type
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter

WO Type
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

CITIZEN
CONCERN

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

CORRECTIVE

CORRECTIVE

IN SCOPE
CORRECTIVE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

IN SCOPE

Completed Date
10/08/2021
10/11/2021
10/12/2021
10/12/2021
10/14/2021
10/13/2021
10/23/2021
10/15/2021
10/15/2021
10/12/2021

10/14/2021
10/15/2021
10/14/2021
10/14/2021
10/15/2021
10/15/2021
10/15/2021
10/15/2021
10/18/2021
10/15/2021

10/15/2021
10/18/2021
10/19/2021

10/23/2021

10/27/2021

10/20/2021
10/19/2021
10/20/2021
10/20/2021
10/22/2021
10/22/2021
10/26/2021

10/26/2021

10/26/2021
10/26/2021

10/26/2021

Printed on 11/03/21 12:44:15 PM



Guyton - Monthly Work Order Request Report

WO No.

Page 3 of 3

80187

80189

80395

80410

80411
80412
80793
80794
80801
80946

80956

Asset ID

GY-ST-0104

GY-ST-0021

GY-ST-0034

GY-ST-0023

GY-ST-0006
GY-ST-0098
GY-ST-0041
GY-ST-0083
GY-ST-0010
GY-ST-0041
GY-ST-0094

Asset Description

Archer Road

Crossgate Way

Fourth Avenue

Dean Drive

Bells Xing

Central Boulevard
Hidden Creek Drive
Lynn Bonds Avenue
Blackberry Circle
Hidden Creek Drive

Braves Field Drive

Brief Description

Sewer Leak

Sewer Leak

Meter Repair

Meter Install_Change
Out

Meter Reading
Meter Reading
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic
Meter Diagnostic

Meter Repair

Comments
There was a lift station issue in the

area and has been addressed with
our vac truck.

There was a lift station issue in the
area

There is a shutoff valve already
there, it was buried so i showed the
homeowner where it was.

New ID-1568706308 New Read-2

On

Completed task
Diagnostic complete.
Completed task
Completed task

New id# 1569913702 Read 2

Problem Type

Sanitary Sewer
System

Sanitary Sewer
System

Water Meter

Water Meter

Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter
Water Meter

Water Meter

WO Type

CITIZEN
CONCERN

CITIZEN
CONCERN

IN SCOPE

CORRECTIVE

IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE
IN SCOPE

Completed Date
10/24/2021

10/24/2021

10/26/2021

10/27/2021

10/26/2021
10/26/2021
10/29/2021
10/28/2021
10/29/2021
10/29/2021
10/29/2021

Printed 77 items

Printed on 11/03/21 12:44:15 PM



4.0

1on

o
O
(),

V)




SECTION 4.0

PUBLIC WORKS

Table 1-STREETS WORK ORDER REPORT

=

2

P

w
[
o
(&)
17
Zz

CORRECTIVE

o
CITIZEN CONCERN F =

u #of WOs

Guyton Monthly Report — October 2021



Guyton - Monthly Work Order Request Report

WO No.

Page 1 of 1

73338
74588
76283
77595
77763
77790

78839

79559

80199

80416

Asset ID

GY-ST-0098
GY-5T-0099
GY-ST-0098
GY-5T-0098
GY-ST-0098
GY-ST-0098

GY-ST-0038

GY-ST-0048

GY-ST-0053

GY-ST-0012

Asset Description
Central Boulevard
Central Avenue
Central Boulevard
Central Boulevard
Central Boulevard
Central Boulevard

Glenmore Drive

Lakeview Drive

Magnolia Street

Brogdon Road

Brief Description Comments Problem Type WO Type
Event Request Other IN SCOPE
Mowing Mowing/Trimming IN SCOPE
Facility Request Other CORRECTIVE
Event Request Streets/Road Work  IN SCOPE
Facility Request Streets/Road Work IN SCOPE
Facility Request Streets/Road Work  IN SCOPE
Pot Hole Repair Pot holes repaired. There is a large ~ Streets/Road Work IN SCOPE

scabbed section that will be
repaired during overlay already
scheduled in TSPLOST repairs. C

Dyson
Dry Trash Large limbs was left until Hydrodig  Dry Trash CITIZEN
could be used to pick up. These CONCERN
have been removed as of this
morning. 10-22-21 C Dyson
Event Request Other IN SCOPE
Pot Hole Repair Streets/Road Work CORRECTIVE

Completed Date
10/15/2021
10/01/2021
10/04/2021
10/12/2021
10/12/2021
10/13/2021
10/21/2021

10/22/2021

10/26/2021
10/27/2021

Printed 10 items

Printed on 11/03/21 12:45:36 PM






SECTION 5.0

ADMINISTRATION
BUDGET EXPENSES
BUDGET EXPENSES
07/21to0 10/21
Description Account ID Budget Expense Inventory Balance
Water Repairs & Maintenance 505-5400-0002 | $ 15,000.00 | $ 12,198.82 | § - S 2,801.18
Water Meters 505-5400-0065 | $ 45,000.00 | $ 29,931.36 | $ 15,892.04 | $ 30,960.68
Water & Sewer Equipment 505-5400-0060 | $ 15,000.00 | $ 2,108.63 | S - S 12,891.37
Water Capital Improvement Projects 430-9000-5430 | $ 174,730.00 | $ 9,810.00
Drinking Water Fees 505-5317-0040 | $ 6,000.00 | $ 348.00 | S - S 5,652.00
Water & Sewer Supplies 505-5310-0001 | $ 25,000.00 | S 8,503.74 | $ - S 16,496.26
Water & Sewer Chemicals 505-5315-0001 | $ 3,000.00 | $ 5,429.59 | $ - S (2,429.59)
Sewer Repairs & Maintenance 505-5400-0001 | $ 55,000.00 | $ 32,011.55 | $ - S 22,988.45
Wastewater Treatment Plant Repairs & Maintena 505-5400-4401 | $ 20,000.00 | $ 7,963.40 | S - S 12,036.60
Wastewater Treatment Plant Supplies 505-5310-4400 | $§ 10,000.00 | $ 7334 | S - S 9,926.66
Streets Supply Expenses 100-4200-5310 | $ 6,500.00 | $ 7,507.70 | $ - S (1,007.70)
Streets Vehicle Expenses 100-4200-5228 | $ 16,300.00 | $ 6,849.46 | $ - S 9,450.54
Streets Equipment Expenses 100-4200-5221 | $ 5,000.00 | $ 5,258.43 | $ - S (258.43)
Total $ 39653000 | $§ 127,994.02 | 15,892.04 | $  119,508.02
INVENTORY
Description Quantity

5/8" x 3/4" NEPTUNE T-10 R900i E-CODER 46

NEPTUNE METER HEADS 17

1X3/4 WATTS LF7R10-U2 BFP 17

5/8X3/4 BRZ MTR CPLG 06 LEAD FREE 13

1X3/4X3/4 MCDONALD 76100MWQ CTSXMSN 13

3/4X5/8X3/ MCDONALD 76100MWQ CTSXMSN CURB STOP 5

17X11-3/4 BROOKS STD MTR BODY ONLY 12" 1015202 23

CIMTR BX LID W/ TOUCH PAD HOLE 27

Guyton Monthly Report — October202]




O
(o)
C
0
)
O
(),
V)




Roadside Clean Up

HELP KEEP OUR COUNTY CLEAN.
VOLUNTEERS NEEDED!

nivers
ilive

November 13th 9:00 am - 11:00 am
Roadside Clean Up

West Central Blvd, Guyton GA 31312

Rally point location: Guyton Ride Share Parking
Lot (across from Parkers, 91 Central Avenue)

SIGN UP

dcook@eomworx.com
Coordinated by EOM Operations.
In partnership with Rivers Alive, the City of Guyton & Effingham County

WWW.€Omworx.com



jun Jerempunols) - welboid Bumiwisd [emespylip 181N
UOISIAI( UOI}29}0.1d [epudwiuolIAug elbioan

:paseyond 1ajem Sae A[iuoN
‘AISMd WOlj IajeMm paseyomy
:pos 131eM FAe A[IUOIA
‘dISMd 01 131em p[og
(yuowt ur sAe( / DI Ul [BI0],) = 93BIOAY “p10s 10 pastiand 1ajeM Aue Jo (DI Ul) 93EIdAE A[YJuow I} 1)UF ‘P[OS IdJEM Jo/put 1Y3N0q 19JEAL 10J JOPUIP] WASAS IJBA [N I)UY
“ypuow TEpud[Ed Y Ul SABP JO 19qUINU 9y} A UMBIPYIM
1918M JO Ajuenb [ej0} SUIPIAIP Aq Pa)R[NO[Ed SI 9FEIOAY ‘Kep yoea 10] 5,015z Sumpndur £q par1oda aq [[1IS ISAW P3SN JOU AIOM JRY) SHULID]  "HULIdDJ [BMBIPYIA 19JeMPUNOID) OED 10] BIEP JILIGNS 3SEI]]
‘Kep 10d suof[es uoljiur s)uasaidar DN xx O 0000L1'8 :s19ymbe [e wouy [ejo], puein
‘suoj[es jo suorfjiur sjuasardsr DN 5 CEEEEETLTO 0 0 +x(ADN) 95e10AY
SSaIppy [rewly 0 0 L18 0 0 x(ON) [e10],
W09 X0IMWOa@ouUIsyd 000'6¥2 0 0 1€
000'+0T 0 0 0¢
IoquInp Xe, 000°THT 0 0 6C
& C ) 000's¥T 0 0 8¢C
IaquunN auoyJ 000'€9C 0 0 LT
y881-SHi-C16 000'€5Z 0 0 9T
000°08€ 0 0 St
apL 000°€L1 0 0 144
103211 000°1LT 0 0 £C
000°€LT 0 0 [44
sureN juld 000'€TT 0 0 | {4
OuIdH Sa[rey) 000°+0€ 0 0 0¢
000'95C 0 0 61
areq ameudig 000°TST 0 0 31
000'06€ 0 0 Ll
120¢2/S0/1 TRl 5 = ol
‘o8pofuouy £w jo 4 | 000°'1LT 0 0 Sl
ST WIOJ SIY} U0 PAUIRIN0D UCEIBUJOJUT |[B JRL]) Yt 000°95T 0 0 14!
A0S B3 Jup®)19)eM punold :[rew-g ] 000'85T 0 0 €1
T1S1-€9% (+0) auoyd | 000'+ST 0 0 Zl
0006-FE£E0E VD ‘eluepy | 000'8€Z 0 0 1
T9E1 Ang ‘s19Mo, pAo|] Ised | 000°€5T 0 0 01
“H'S 1 If Sury] oyin ulep 000892 0 0 6
J1U[) [EMEBIPYIIAL 1IJEAPUNO.ID) 000°G€T 0 0 ]
weidoid Ajddng 1ajepy 000°€€T 0 0 L
UOISTAI(] UOI}02}01 [EJUSWIUOIIAUF BIZI09D) (0} PUdg 000'65C 0 0 9
OUTOH Sa[Iey) U0SId] JoeIU0) 000°197 0 0 S
ZIEIE VD UonD) 000'€ZE 0 0 ¥
PAIE [ENUDD Ol€]  :SSAIPPY NULId] 000°LET 0 0 €
uojhng jo A1) 000°L0€ 0 0 [4
000°0v€ 0 0 1
uo}Ann jo K1) “19PJOH ULy < (oureu 1o3mby)
weysuyyyg Auno) £ 1PM ClPM I 1IPM [Iuo Jo Ae(q
“I0qQUINN] JIULIDJ “1oyinbe [enprAIpul Jey) woly a5esn pajsodal oY) pue sweu 19§inbe dy) 1s1] 0} M0]2q S[qe} SY) U SULIN|OO [RUOHIPPE 31} 3S() "Kjoreradas
9000-680 [eMBIPYIM MD ﬁ::v« yoed Eo@ agesn to%: ommo_m E&.:g oEE:E WIOIJ [EMEIPIIIM SMO[[B 1B} JIIa] 98] bsau::o_o B urejurew o:B s1opjoy :E_oa 104
1202 1290300 DAA/PUON Hoday

nun hmum\suc:o@ Em_mo_n_ mcE_E_mn_ E>>Eu£.>> _ﬁm>>
UOISIAI(] U0I}29}0.1d [epudawiuolinug eibioa9




oinjerodwa ],

:pajdwes ajeq

ON [IPM spupy

“ooue)ONpU0)) o4192dg [EnuUUY

ﬂ S[[oA § woly sguIpe

21 9y} - S[[oM 0Z-9] Wol]

S[[oM ¢ WOIJ SFuIpeal aye)

- S[[eM GT-T T Wol]

s[[om Z woly sSurpeas oxel - sjjom 01-9 RN I AIN

O WO1J S3UIPeaI aye) - S[[oM G-T WOL]

“M0]oq PalsI] JeWI0] oY) MO[[0J 95ea[d ‘S[[oAL [EUOIIIPPE 10,] "POPIOJAI ST JUIWSINSEIW I2)EM ) W) YIS (S)[[oM oues oy} FUIsn (S)[[oM SUIPJAIA JSAYSIY oY) WOIJ SFUIPEII [ENUUBIWIS OB, 4

Aroadg) O | Fuise) jJo do], N _|no1n {WOI] JUSWAINSEIIA
Aqoadg) oo | adel q01d | Y JUOWIRINSEIA] JO POYION
sIy ‘[PA3T JajeA\ Surdumg soj padwind smoy snonunuod Jo JoquinN paInsedJy a1 e oA YT
ON IIPM _c _ UONRAJ[H _ ) £4x]9A9T IojeA Surduing )
Sy {[9AT I9J2A\ O1EIS 10 UMOPINYS SINOY JO JIQUINN painsesJA a1eq
"ON [IPM _c _ “U0IRAd[T _ 3 #xx[9A9T JOIBA O1IRIS
Ajoadg) 1010 | suised jodol _jho1p ‘WIOL,] JUSUIINSBIA
Aproadg) Y10 | adey sqold | Y “JUSWIAINSEIJA] JO POYIDN
sIy ‘[2A9T 1Rjepy Smdumg 1oy paduind s1noy snonunuod o JoquinN pamseajy aeq e oA N0
ON [P\ |8 | “UOLBAJ[T | ¥ ,+[0A97 JojE M Surduing
SIy| {[9AT J2JeAN OTJB}S JOJ UMOPINYS SINOY JO I9qUINN paInseaj e
"ON [IPM _@ _ :UO1RAJ[T _ U +%%[9A9T IOIBA\ O1IEIS
Ajadg) Iyl | suse) Jo do N _|no1n W01, JUSWIAINSBIA
Ayadg) 1yl | adey aqord | v JUSWIAINSEIJA JO POYIDN
sIy ‘[oAaT 19jep\ Surdumd 105 padwind sinoy snonuiuod Jo JoqunN paInSesJA e e
"ON [IPA\ _c _ uoIeAd[g _ P £x5[0A9T J91p Surduing ’
s1y {[AT J2JBA\ OTJB]S J0J UMOPINYS SINOY JO IdqUINN paIsedJA e
ON IPA\ [u | “uoNRAY | Y #4x[9AT JIEM O1IBIS
Aroadg) 19y10 | suise) Jodo N _jno1n {WOI,] JUSWINSBIN
Apoadg) 100 | ade | qoid | iy JUSWIAINSEIJA JO POYISIN
SIy ‘[0A97T 19)eAN Surduing 10y paduwind sinoy snonuiuod Jo JoquinN paInSedJA e
"ONL [[oM _a _ uoneAd[g _ g wxx[OA9T J9JEA\ Surdwing HRCL TR PUosag
sIy {[9AST JOJEAN O11B}S 10 UMOPINYS SINOY JO JaquinN painsesJ aieg
“ONLTIPM Ju | “uoNeAd[g | ¥ #4£[9A97 10JEM O1JEIS
AJoadg) 1oyi0 | guise) Jo doj, ) _jno1n {WOL,] JUSUIDINSEIA
Aadg) 110 adey, | aqold Y JUAWAINSBIJA] JO POYIIIA
sI ‘[0A9T I10)ep, Surduing 1oy padwind sinoy snonurjuod Jo 1dquinN painseajq e
“ON [IPM _a _ “uoneAdq _ Y «xx[2A9T 191 A\ Surdwing NI 1R
sIy {[9A9T J2)JEAN O11E)S 10 UMOPINYS SINOY JO JaquinN paInseajA e
ONTIPM _t _ -uoneA9[q _ Y #5x[9AT IOJEM O11BIS
uieN JIPIoH NuLg CON JULId Y ‘puoy partoday




ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION DIVISION
DRINKING WATER PROGRAM
GROUND WATER OPERATION REPORT

State of Georgia
Department of Natural Resources
Environmental Protection Division

Drinking Water Permitting & Engineering
2 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive Suite 1362 East
Atlanta, GA 30334

System Name: City of Guyton WSID #: 1030000
Plant Name: Well #1 Plant ID# : Well 101
County: Effingham Permit # : 89-0006

Summary of (MONTH) October (YEAR): 2021

Finished Water Analysis
Day Raw Water Treated Water Flouride Chlorine Chlorine Poly-
of Month Meter Reading Pumped to Free Free phosphate Remarks
X1000 Distribution System* Entry End
(Gallons) (Gallons) (Ib or gal) (mgl/L) (mg/L) (S.U.)
1 155,441,000 0 0.48 Well Offline due to SCADA
2 155,441,000 0 0.74 Issues
3 155,441,000 0 0.72
4 155,441,000 0 0.74
5 155,441,000 0 0.86
6 155,441,000 0 0.92
7 155,441,000 0 0.86
8 155,441,000 0 1.13
9 155,441,000 0 0.81
10 155,441,000 0 0.71
11 155,441,000 0 0.83
12 155,441,000 0 0.64
13 155,441,000 0 0.61
14 155,441,000 0 0.94
15 155,441,000 0 1.08
16 155,441,000 0 0.87
17 155,441,000 0 0.81
18 155,441,000 0 0.69
19 155,441,000 0 0.66
20 155,441,000 0 0.79
21 155,441,000 0 1.33
22 155,441,000 0 0.75
23 155,441,000 0 1.04
24 155,441,000 0 1.08
25 155,441,000 0 1.09
26 155,441,000 0 1.14
27 155,441,000 0 1.73
28 155,441,000 0 1.55
29 155,441,000 0 0.6
30 155,441,000 0 1.1
31 155,441,000 0 1.08
Total 0 0 28.38 0 0
Days 31 31 0 31 0 0
Avg. 0 0.00 0.92 0.00 0.00
Max. 0 0 1.73 0 0
Min. 0 0 0.48 0 0

*Treated and/or Pumped values should be reported as a total for a 24 hour period beginning 0000-2400.
(e.g., Take reading at same time each day so that it is for 24 hours) Type Fluoride Compound Used: Acid

Type Chlorine Compound Used: Gas

| certify that all inf

G ont ained on th form is correct and true to the best of my knowledge.
[ ]
“" - . . . .
A \’ SN Title: Director of Municipal Operations- EOM

Signature:

Print Name: Charles Heino Certification Class: 1 Phone #: 912 445-1884

EPD 1.6 Revised Dec 2003



State of Georgia ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION DIVISION Drinking Water Permitting & Engineering

Department of Natural Resources DRINKING WATER PROGRAM 2 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive Suite 1362 East
Environmental Protection Division GROUND WATER OPERATION REPORT Atlanta, GA 30334
System Name: City of Guyton WSID #: 1030000
Plant Name: Well #2 Plant ID# : Well 102
County: Effingham Permit # : 89-0006
Summary of (MONTH) October (YEAR): 2021
Finished Water Analysis
Day Raw Water Treated Water Flouride Chlorine Chlorine Poly-
of Month Meter Reading Pumped to Free Free phosphate Remarks
X1000 Distribution System* Entry End
(Gallons) (Gallons) (Ib or gal) (mg/L) (mg/L) (S.U.)
1 91,704,714 0 0.48 Well operated manually
2 91,704,714 0 0.74 due to SCADA issues
3 91,704,714 0 0.72
4 91,704,714 0 0.74
5 91,704,714 0 0.86
6 91,704,714 0 0.92
7 91,704,714 0 0.86
8 91,704,714 0 1.13
9 91,704,714 0 0.81
10 91,704,714 0 0.71
11 91,704,714 0 0.83
12 91,704,714 0 0.64
13 91,704,714 0 0.61
14 91,704,714 0 0.94
15 91,704,714 0 1.08
16 91,704,714 0 0.87
17 91,704,714 0 0.81
18 91,704,714 0 0.69
19 91,704,714 0 0.66
20 91,704,714 0 0.79
21 91,704,714 0 1.33
22 91,704,714 0 0.75
23 91,704,714 0 1.04
24 91,704,714 0 1.08
25 91,704,714 0 1.09
26 91,704,714 0 1.14
27 91,704,714 0 1.73
28 91,704,714 0 1.565
29 91,704,714 0 0.60
30 91,704,714 0 1.10
31 91,704,714 0 1.1
Total 0 0 28.38 0 0
Days 31 31 0 31 0 0
Avg. 0 0.00 0.92 0.00 0.00
Max. 0 0 1.73 0 0
Min. 0 0 0.48 0 0
*Treated and/or Pumped values should be reported as a total for a 24 hour period beginning 0000-2400.
(e.g., Take reading at same time each day so that it is for 24 hours) Type Fluoride Compound Used: Acid
Type Chlorine Compound Used: Gas
| certify that all infor form is correct and true to the best of my knowledge.
Signature: Title: Director of Municipal Operations- EOM
Print Name: Charles Heino Certification Class: 1 Phone #: 912 445-1884

EPD 1.6 Revised Dec 2003



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION DIVISION
DRINKING WATER PROGRAM
GROUND WATER OPERATION REPORT

State of Georgia
Department of Natural Resources
Environmental Protection Division

Drinking Water Permitting & Engineering
2 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive Suite 1362 East
Atlanta, GA 30334

System Name: City of Guyton WSID #: 1030000
Plant Name: Well #3 Plant ID# : Well 103
County: Effingham Permit # : 89-0006
Summary of (MONTH) October (YEAR): 2021
Finished Water Analysis
Day Raw Water Treated Water Flouride Chlorine Chlorine Poly-
of Month Meter Reading Pumped to Free Free phosphate Remarks
X1000 Distribution System* Entry End
(Gallons) (Gallons) (Ib or gal) (mg/L) (mg/L) (S.U.)
1 629,340 340,000 0.48
2 629,647 307,000 0.74
3 629,884 237,000 0.72
4 630,207 323,000 0.74
5 630,468 261,000 0.86
6 630,727 259,000 0.92
7. 630,960 233,000 0.86
8 631,195 235,000 1.13
9 631,463 268,000 0.81
10 631,716 253,000 0.71
11 631,954 238,000 0.83
12 632,208 254,000 0.64
13 632,466 258,000 0.61
14 632,722 256,000 0.94
15 632,993 271,000 1.08
16 633,192 199,000 0.87
17 633,582 390,000 0.81
18 633,834 252,000 0.69
19 634,090 256,000 0.66
20 634,394 304,000 0.79
21 634,617 223,000 1.33
22 634,890 273,000 0.75
23 635,161 271,000 1.04
24 635,334 173,000 1.08
25 635,714 380,000 1.09
26 635,967 253,000 1.14
27 636,230 263,000 1.73
28 636,475 245,000 1.55
29 636,717 242,000 0.60
30 636,921 204,000 1.10
31 637,170 249,000 1.1
Total 8,170,000 0 0
Days 31 31 0 31 0 0
Avg. 263,548 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Max. 390,000 0 1.73 0 0
Min. 173,000 0 0.48 0 0

*Treated and/or Pumped values should be reported as a total for a 24 hour period beginning 0000-2400.
(e.g., Take reading at same time each day so that it is for 24 hours) Type Fluoride Compound Used: Acid

Type Chlorine Compound Used: Gas

| certify that all infprma

Signature: Title: Director of Municipal Operations- EOM

Print Name: Charles Heino Certification Class: 1 Phone #: 912 445-1884

EPD 1.6 Revised Dec 2003



EFFINGHAM

0

GA

Notable Incidents:

10/03/2021
10/03/2021
10/16/2021
10/19/2021

Fire & Life Safety Education:

601 North Laurel St. Springfield, GA 31329
Phone (912) 754-8888 Fax (912) 754-8855

October 2021 Monthly Report

Responses

Structure Fire:
Fire Alarm:
Vehicle Fire:
Brush/Rubbish Fire:
MVC:
Extrication:
Public Assist:
Medical:

Search & Rescue:
Aircraft Incident:
Haz-Mat:

Total:

Ultralight Crash

Structure Fire

Structure Fire

Commercial Structure Fire

46

31

33
258

394

Green Morgan School Rd
Eagle Dr

Church St

S Columbia Ave

1%t Grade Program & Forest Fire Safety Program

T\

PR

\
\

%

)

-

Effingham County Fire, Rescue & EMA KEEM

South Effingham Elementary, Blandford Elementary, Marlow Elementary, Sandhill Elementary,
Guyton Elementary, Springfield Elementary

Students: 828

Adults: 286



